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PROCUREMENT DEPARTMENT 
4 WORLD TRADE CENTER 

150 GREENWICH STREET, 21ST  FL. 
NEW YORK, NY 10007 

3/18/2016 
 

ADDENDUM # 2 
 
To prospective Proposer(s) on RFP # 45171 for Taxi Dispatch Services at John F. 
Kennedy International Airport, Newark Liberty International Airport, LaGuardia 
Airport and the Port Authority Bus Terminal: 

 
· Proposals originally due on 3/10/2016, no later than 2:00 PM 

 
· Proposals now due on 3/31/2016, no later than 2:00 PM  

 
 

 
I. CHANGES/MODIFICATIONS  

 
A. In Attachment B, Part I, Contract Specific Terms and Conditions, section 

9, Wages, Health and Supplemental Benefits, paragraph C, top of page 45, 
delete the blank table and replace with the following: 
 

Position Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 

Assistant Taxi 
Dispatcher 

$12.67 $12.79 $12.92 

Taxi Dispatcher $14.73 $14.87 $15.02 

Taxi Dispatch 
Supervisor 

$19.31 $19.50 $19.70 

   
II. BIDDER'S QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

 
The following information is available in response to questions submitted by 
prospective Bidders.  The responses should not be deemed to answer all 
questions, which have been submitted by Bidders to the Port Authority.  It 
addresses only those questions, which the Port Authority has deemed to 
require additional information and/or clarification.  The fact that information 
has not been supplied with respect to any questions asked by a Bidders does 
not mean or imply, nor should it be deemed to mean or imply, any meaning, 
construction, or implication with respect to the terms.  
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The Port Authority makes no representations, warranties or guarantees that the 
information contained herein is accurate, complete or timely or that such 
information accurately represents the conditions that would be encountered 
during the performance of the Contract. The furnishing of such information by 
the Port Authority shall not create or be deemed to create any obligation or 
liability upon it for any reason whatsoever and each Bidder, by submitting its 
Bid, expressly agrees that it has not relied upon the foregoing information, and 
that it shall not hold the Port Authority liable or responsible therefor in any 
manner whatsoever.  Accordingly, nothing contained herein and no 
representation, statement or promise, of the Port Authority, its 
Commissioners, officers, agents, representatives, or employees, oral or in 
writing, shall impair or limit the effect of the warranties of the Bidder required 
by this Bid or Contract and the Bidder agrees that it shall not hold the Port 
Authority liable or responsible therefor in any manner whatsoever. 
The Questions and Answers numbering sequence will be continued 
sequentially in any forthcoming Addenda that may be issued.   
 
Q1.  Please share the name and type of technology currently being used by taxi 
dispatchers. 
A1. The taxi dispatch software is proprietary and is referred to as the 
“Dispatch on Demand” system. It is a Radio-frequency identification (RFID) 
based system that tracks and records taxi movement from a centralized stack 
to individual taxi queues located at the airline terminals at each airport. It 
utilizes hardwired and handheld Intermec hardware to scan the RFID tags at 
the various scan points. 
 
Q2.  Does the Port Authority supply all of the technology currently used by the 
taxi dispatcher?  If not, please list the equipment the vendors will be 
responsible for? 
A2.Yes, the Port Authority supplies all of the technology currently used by the 
taxi dispatcher. 
  
Q3.  Will the Port Authority require the new vendor to keep the same 
technology? 
A3.  Please reference  page 10,  Section 2,"Scope of Work", parargraph 2.  
 
Q4.  Does the Port Authority own all of the dispatching software or devices 
currently being used? 
A4.  Yes, the Port Authority owns all of the dispatching software and devices 
currently being used. 
 
Q5. Page 60. Section 9 Contractors Audit Program; please share your current 
audit process. 
A5. This is a new requirement for this Contract. 
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Q6. How are meal reliefs handled under the current Contract (i.e. is there a 
separate meal relief position or are the posts self-relieving?) Is the current 
system for meal reliefs the way that the Port Authority requires it be done for 
the new Contract? 
A6. In the current Contract, there are separate meal relief positions. In 
reference to new contract, please reference Section 15 “Schedule for 
Dispatchers”. 
 
Q7. What's the monthly or annual cost of the short haul ticket supplies, and 
please share a list of current ancillary cost? 
A7 
The new contract is different from the current contract in regards to short haul 
ticket supplies. Please reference Section 5, “Extra Work” materials.  
 
Q8.  Attachment B; Page 69, section C, the paragraph states: “All cost for 
short haul ticket and dispensing stock for the central Taxi stack will be paid 
with the Extra Work to Contractor by Port Authority”, please clarify the Extra 
Work provision? 
A8. The Extra Work clause is located in Attachment “B”, Contract Specific 
Terms and Conditions, Section 5, page 37.  
 
Q9. Page 72, Section 20: please clarify, is there a special Port Authority 
uniform the taxi dispatchers are required to wear; and if yes, please share the 
individual and annual cost per uniform. 
A9. Uniform Specifications are listed in Attachment I (“Exhibits”), Exhibit I 
(“Uniform Specifications”). Attachment B, Part II, Section 20 (“Uniforms”) 
(page 70) contains additional information on uniforms, which are provided 
and paid for by the Contractor. The Port Authority does not have knowledge 
of the cost of the uniforms. 
 
Q10. Are the current taxi dispatchers union employees, if yes, please provide 
the name of the union for each            location? 
A10. The Port Authority has been provided with the following information, 
but makes no representations as to its accuracy, with respect to the taxi 
dispatchers:  
JFK, LGA & PABT: Local 74 – United Service Workers Union (USWU);  
EWR: Local 1032-Communications Workers of America (CWA) 
 
Q11. If possible, please provide the CBA for each airport location where 
applicable. 
A11.  The Port Authority cannot provide access to any Collective Bargaining 
Agreement between the Port Authority’s existing contractor and labor 
organizations representing its employees.   
 
Q12. If a CBA is in place, can you please share the date of expiration for each 
location? 
A12. See A11 above. 
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Q 13. (A). Section O, Page 9, refers to secure workers access consortium 
(S.W.A.C); will the vendor be responsible for all employees obtaining SWAC 
credentials? 
A13. (A). Yes 
 
Q13. (B). Is S.W.A.C card credentialing reimbursable to the Contractor? 
A13. (B). Section “O” on Page 9 of the Information of Bidders specifies that 
the cost for said background checks for staff that pass and are granted a 
credential are reimbursable. Staff that are rejected for a credential for any 
reason are not reimbursable. 
 
Q14.  Can you provide the number of taxis dispatched per facility on a daily, 
weekly and monthly basis? 
A14.  Please see below: 
 LGA: Based on 2015 reported number of taxis dispatched: 
  Daily: 8,253, Weekly: 57,932, Monthly: 251,037 
 JFK: Based on 2015 reported number of taxis dispatched: 
  Daily: 8,030, Weekly: 56,220, Monthly: 248,936 
 EWR: Based on 2015 reported number of taxis dispatched: 
  Daily: 2096, Weekly: 14,667, Monthly: 64,952 
 PABT: Information not available for the PABT 
 
Q15. Can you provide a staffing plan for each work area at each facility?  Is 
there any flexibility to alter the times specified in the RFP package if 
necessary? 
A15. See Attachment A of this Addendum 3 for staffing plan for all facilities. 
The times specified in the RFP may be altered based on facility operational 
need, changes in terminal flight arrival activity, or other factors determined by 
Port Authority operations staff responsible for each facility. 
 
Q16. Can you provide information regarding the union, which covers each 
facility to include benefits package, wages, increase policy and health and 
welfare costs per employee?  Are all employees required to join the union?  
Are all facilities represented by the union?  What is the Union? 
A16. See A10 above. Benefits information is maintained by the Contractor. 
The Port Authority understands non-management Contractor staff are 
represented.  
 
Q17. Can you provide a copy of the sign in sheet for each site visit? 
A17. See Addendum # 1 dated 3-3-2016. 
 
Q18. Can you provide the name of the automatic vehicle identification (AVI) 
system manufacturer and if possible a copy of the operations manual? 
A18. The AVI software is proprietary and was developed by Planning 
Technologies, Inc. The hardware is manufactured by Intermec. No operations 
manual exists for this unit. 
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Q19. Is the Port Authority interested in other technology solutions?  
A19. At present, the Port Authority will continue to utilize the existing 
technology but may consider other solutions in the future. 
 
Q20. Newark Liberty International Airport specified that there is both a short 
and long haul procedure.  Can you please explain what the difference is 
between a short haul and long haul? 
A20.  Short hauls are fares of $20 or less for local destinations. This includes 
all of Newark, Elizabeth, and Irvington, NJ.  
 
Q 21. Is there a timetable to add the auto scanning functionality at Newark 
Liberty International Airport?  Does the manual scanning process increase 
man hour or productivity in any way? 
A21. The current plan is to have the auto scanning functionality installed at 
Newark Liberty International Airport by end of Quarter 3 2016. 
 
Q22. (A). Can you describe the information that is printed out on the receipts 
which is given to the passenger as they enter the taxi?  
A22. (A). JFK, LGA & EWR: See Attachment B of this Addendum 3. There 
is no receipt used for the PABT. 
 
Q22. (B). Is there a plan to have a consolidated unit, which has the scanner 
and printer combined? 
A22. (B). Not at this time. 
 
Q23. Can you provide a list of billable hours for the previous year’s contract 
compared to the hours listed in the RFP? 
A23. Please see below: 
EWR: 
Supervisor -  8,760 
Lead -  8,760 
Dispatchers-  74,000 
 
JFK: 
Supervisor -  20,440 
Lead -  43,070 
Dispatchers-  90,885 
 
LGA: 
Supervisor -  14,677.25 
Dispatchers-  77,914 
 
PABT: 
Supervisor -  4,380 
Dispatchers - 8,395 
Based on the operation, these hours are subject to change. 
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Q24. Can you describe the corrective measures when a driver fails to meet the 
standards specified by the Port Authority? 
A24. The Port Authority can suspend the driver’s medallion number in the 
taxi dispatch system so that they will not be able to pick up fares at the airport. 
In addition, taxi dispatch Contractor staff may issue Taxi Dispatcher Program 
Violation Forms against taxi drivers for violations of Taxi and Limousine 
Commission Rules and Regulations. 
 
Q25. Please provide current billable rate by job class. 
A25. Taxi Dispatch current Contact hourly billable rates: 
JFK & LGA:  
Taxi Dispatcher – Full time            $32.27 
Taxi Dispatcher – Part time           $27.82 
TLC Dispatcher                              $32.27 
Assistant Taxi Dispatcher – FT      $29.13 
Assistant Taxi Dispatcher - PT       $24.68 
Supervisor                                       $35.53 
TLC Supervisor                              $35.53 
 
EWR: 
Dispatchers F/T                 $28.82 
Dispatchers P/T   $27.57 
Supervisor    $35.27 
Lead    $32.18 
 
PABT: 
Full Time                           $32.27 
Part Time                          $27.82 
Supervisor                        $35.53 
 
Q26. What are the current direct wages? 
A26.See attached “Port Authority Taxi Dispatch – Active Employee Roster as 
of February 21, 2016”.  
 
Q27. Item 4. Financial Info B. – Statement of work which the proposer has on 
hand, including any work on which a bid and/or proposal has been submitted, 
containing a description of  the work, the annual dollar value, the location by 
city and state, the current percentage of completion, the expected date for 
completion, and the name of the individual most familiar with the proposer 
work on these jobs”. 
 The above requirement reads like a current client reference, if so, can our 
response to section E. Documentation of Proposer Prerequisites and section F. 
2. Firm Experience…where we have listed some of our clients with the same 
information serve as the answer to item 4. Financial info B.?  
A27. It can; however, bear in mind that the “Financial Information” requested 
refers to all work that the Proposer has on hand, whereby the “Firm 
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Experience” information requested refers to experience in providing similar 
services for a contract of similar size and scope. 
 

 
This communication should be initialed by you and annexed to your Proposal upon 
submission. 
 
In case any Proposer fails to conform to these instructions, its Proposal will nevertheless 
be construed as though this communication had been so physically annexed and initialed. 
 
      THE PORT AUTHORITY OF NY & NJ  
      Selene Ortega, Manager 
      Commodities & Services Division  
 
PROPOSER'S FIRM NAME: _______________________________________________ 
INITIALED: ____________________________________________________________ 
DATE: _________________________________________________________________ 
 
QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS ADDENDUM MAY BE ADDRESSED TO 
RICHARD GREHL, WHO CAN BE REACHED AT (212) 435 - 4633 OR AT 
RGREHL@PANYNJ.GOV. 








































